
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                            

 

         April 22, 2016                                  

 

A Special Meeting of the Bay Village City Council will be held on Monday, April 25, 2016, 

immediately following the Committee Meeting of Council at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 

of Bay Village City Hall, 350 Dover Center Road, to take action on items listed below: 

  

1. Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance/Councilwoman Karen Lieske, Ward 3 

2. Announcements/Audience/Miscellaneous 

3. Motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held April 18, 

2016.*Clark* 

 

4.  Resolution authorizing the filing of an Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Grant application, 

and declaring an emergency.*Vincent* 

 

5. Ordinance to amend appropriations for the current and other expenditures of the City of Bay 

Village for the Fiscal Year 2016, as previously appropriated in Annual Appropriation Ordinance 

No. 16-09, and declaring an emergency.*Clark* 

 

6. Motion to convene to Executive Session regarding Contracts: SAFEbuilt, Inc.; Personnel: 

Administrative Compensation Ordinance, and Chapter 151, Employment Provisions.*Clark* 

 

7.  Adjournment.  

 

 Charter Reference 2.11                         

     Paul A. Koomar, President of Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agenda 

Special Meeting of Council 

April 25, 2016 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Procedure 

 

   Section 2.14    - Effective Date 

   C.O. 111.10    - Council Rules for Legislation 

 

Roll call on suspension of Charter Rules: 

 

 Every ordinance or resolution shall be read on three different days unless two-thirds (2/3) 

of the total number of Council members provided for in this Charter dispense with the rules. 

 

Roll call on suspension of Council Rules: 

 

 No ordinance or resolution shall be passed unless a written copy thereof is before the 

Council …at least 24 hours before any meeting of Council at which action…is contemplated. 

 

Roll call on inclusion of the emergency clause: 

 

 All ordinances and resolutions shall become effective forty (40) days after their passage 

by Council unless a later effective date is set forth or an earlier date is established.  Resolutions 

to initiate any public improvement shall become effective immediately upon their passage and 

approval by the Mayor. 

 

 It is required that two-thirds (2/3) of the total number of Council members provided for 

by this Charter vote affirmatively to enact with the emergency provisions.  This clause allows 

legislation to become effective immediately upon passage and approval by the Mayor. 

 

NOTE:  Regular and Special Meetings of Council are scheduled for 8:00 p.m.  However, 

Council generally meets informally at 7:30 p.m. prior to a Regular or Special meeting, and 

said portion, usually held in the conference room, is open to the public. 



CITY OF BAY VILLAGE 

 
Council Minutes, Regular Meeting                      April 18, 2016  
Council Chambers 8:20 p.m.             
  
Paul A. Koomar, President of Council, presiding 
 
Present:           Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent, Mayor Sutherland 
 
Also Present: Finance Director Mahoney, Recreation Director Enovitch, Director of Public 
Safety/Service Thomas, Police Chief Spaetzel, Operations Manager Landers.  

 

AUDIENCE 

 

The following audience members signed in this evening: Kristen O’Connor and Matthew Kuzma 
of Key Bank, Dick Majewski, Lydia DeGeorge, Richard Czech, Jerrie Barnett, Tara Wendell, 
Jeff Gallatin, Claire Banasiak, Richard Fink, and Bob Tuneberg. 
                          
Mr. Koomar called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 8:20 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of Bay Village City Hall, with roll call and the Pledge of Allegiance led by Paul 
Vincent, Councilman of Ward 2. 
 
Following the roll call, Mr. Koomar called for a reading of the Minutes of the Special Meeting of 
Council held April 11, 2016.  Mr. Clark MOVED to dispense with the reading and accept the 
minutes of April 11, 2016 as prepared and distributed. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Mayor Sutherland announced that on Tuesday, April 19, the State of the City address 
sponsored by the West Shore Chamber of Commerce will be held at the LaCentre Banquet 
Center in Westlake, Ohio, at 11:30 a.m.  The event is open to the public and the tickets are $20 
each for lunch. 
 
The Mayor stated that it was announced last spring that the City of Bay Village would receive a 
$50,000 grant from NOACA.  A stakeholders meeting will be held on May 16, 2016 from 6 p.m. 
to 7:30 p.m. in the Community Room of the Bay Village Police Department with representation 
from the Regional Transit Agency, Ohio Department of Transportation, Cleveland Metroparks, 
City of Bay Village, Bay Schools and Bike Co-op.  The stakeholders are those people that will 
be impacted by any changes in access to both sides of Cahoon Memorial Park.  The meeting is 
open to the public. 
 
Key Bank Presentation regarding: 

• Heritage Home Loan Program  

• Housing Enhancement Loan Program (HELP) 
 



Minutes of Regular Meeting 
Bay Village City Council 
April 18, 2016 
 

2 
 

Mr. Koomar introduced Kristen O’Connor, Branch Manager of the Bay Village Key Bank, and 
Matthew Kuzma, a Licensed Loan Specialist at Key Bank.  Mr. Koomar noted that Key Bank is 
the only institution in Bay Village that does both the Heritage Home Loan Program and the 
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (HELP) of Cuyahoga County.  Mr. Koomar noted that 
twelve years ago he took advantage of the HELP Program and found it to be a very easy process 
to apply with a quick-turn around.  With spring upon us and homeowners looking to make 
improvements, Mr. Koomar thought it timely and helpful to have this information presented this 
evening.  
 
Matthew Kuzma stated that the HELP Program started twelve years ago and is for all residents of 
Cuyahoga County.  The program is based off of the fact that when you go through the normal 
lending process with Key Bank and other institutions, whatever you are approved for by the bank 
Cuyahoga County will subsidize 3%.  If the loan is approved at 6%, the County will subsidize 
3%.  There is no maximum income requirement.  The only requirement is that the house being 
improved is taxed under $250,000.  This is applicable to primary homes, secondary homes, and 
rental property.  The lending process takes five to six weeks if the home is used as collateral.  
Key Bank also allows unsecured loans, and that process takes one to two weeks.    Borrowing up 
to $12,000 is eligible for a five-year loan term; above that the life of the loan is up to ten years.  
Key Bank does not penalize the customer for paying off the loan early.  Many times with the 
program there are no fees involved until the very end.  Average closing cost is $125.00 which 
can go into the loan.  The loans can be used for interior and exterior improvements.  The only 
things excluded are swimming pools, luxury type items, and appliances.  An appraisal fee or 
escrow fee is not required.  Ms. O’Connor noted that they are doing a loan now that is 0.9%, 
fixed rate. 
 
Ms. O’Connor reviewed the Heritage Home Loan Program sponsored by the Cleveland 
Restoration Society for homes 50 years of age and older, with no requirement for the value of the 
home.  The Cleveland Restoration Society aims to keep the integrity of the home when it was 
originally built.  A person from the Restoration Society is designated to assist the homeowner 
through the entire process.  They will begin with a walk-through of the home at the onset of the 
process to let the homeowner know what will qualify, and then grant the connection with the 
bank.  The Society has a list of approved contractors and they will work with the homeowner and 
the contractor all the way through the program.  The rates for the Heritage Home Loan Program 
are still 3% off the bank rate, but are not quite as low as the Help Loan Program.  Appraisal and 
escrow fees are required which can be included as part of the loan.  Terms are five years to ten 
years.  The after re-hab appraisal value can be used for equity. 
 
Mr. Bob Tuneberg stated that he used the HELP loan for a driveway and received a loan for 
.99% with a $125 initiation fee and 3% off the going rate.  Mr. Tuneberg noted that he was able 
to use a Bay Village contractor for the driveway.  Mr. Tuneberg expressed complete satisfaction 
with the HELP Loan program, and noted that residents cannot go wrong with this opportunity. 
 
 

 

                                     



Minutes of Regular Meeting 
Bay Village City Council 
April 18, 2016 
 

3 
 

REPORTS 

Law Director Ebert had no report this evening. 

 

Finance Director Mahoney stated that today is the deadline for filing taxes.  The average wait 

time for the Regional Income Tax Agency (R.I.T.A.) telephone assistance has been three 

minutes.  R.I.T.A. had 370,000 tax returns filed and were experiencing some problems this 

morning due to the high volume of calls. 

 

Mr. Clark asked if the City will experience a quicker transfer of municipal income tax funds or 

will remain on the same cycle.  Mrs. Mahoney stated that the collection rate will remain the 

same, even though R.I.T.A. is definitely more efficient this year and has not experienced the 

customer service problems that they have in the past. 

 

Recreation Director Enovitch reminded everyone that the Bay Village Family Aquatic Center 

opens on May 30, 2016.  The early-bird special for passes runs until May 12, 2016, offering a 

$10.00 discount.  Recreation Department offices are open on Saturdays from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m. 

through May.   

 

Safety/Service Director Thomas had no report this evening. 

 

Police Chief Spaetzel commented that as he drove through the City this evening it was great to 

see everyone enjoying the community outdoors.  The No-Turn-on-Red signs have been installed 

throughout the City by the Service Department.  A grace period is in place now to allow 

motorists to become acclimated to the signs.  Enforcement action will be taken in approximately 

three weeks. 

 

A coupon give-away will begin for kids observed wearing helmets when riding their bikes.  Five 

to six hundred of these coupons were given away last year. 

 

Chief Spaetzel stated that there was an incident on Russell Road near Clague Road which was an 

accidental firearm discharge.  The individual has been charged with five different criminal 

charges.  He has been bonded out and the terms of the bond should provide protection for the 

residents and make them feel better as the City goes through the court process.  There has been a 

lot of contact with residents in the area who have been very understanding as the process is 

worked through. 

 

Mr. Koomar asked if the individual is allowed to be in the home.  Chief Spaetzel stated that he is 

not permitted to be in the home.  Weapons were confiscated. 

 

There were no comments from the audience this evening. 
 



Minutes of Regular Meeting 
Bay Village City Council 
April 18, 2016 
 

4 
 

ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

The motion to not request a hearing with the Ohio Division of Liquor Control relative to the 
application of a D5 Permit by the Panorama Restaurant has been removed from this evening’s 
agenda pending information from the Director of Law. 
 

FINANCE AND CLAIMS 

 

Mr. Clark introduce and read Ordinance 16-21 authorizing the Mayor to enter into a labor 
agreement with the Ohio Patrolmen’s Benevolent Association (Sergeants and Lieutenants), and 
declaring an emergency, and moved for adoption. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mr. Koomar called for a vote on adoption of Ordinance No. 

16-21. 

Roll Call on Suspension of Charter Rules: 
 Yeas – Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent 
 Nays – None. 
Roll Call on Suspension of Council Rules: 
 Yeas – Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent 
 Nays – None. 
Roll Call on Inclusion of Emergency Clause: 
 Yeas – Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent 
 Nays – None. 
Roll Call on Adoption: 
 Yeas – Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent 
 Nays – None. 

 
Mr. Koomar announced adoption of Ordinance No. 16-21, an emergency measure, by a vote of 7-0. 
 

PLANNING, ZONING, PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS COMMITTEE 

 

Mrs. Lieske had no report this evening.   
 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS/STREETS/SEWERS/DRAINAGE COMMITTEE 

 
Mr. Henderson had no report this evening. 
 
RECREATION AND PARK IMPROVEMENTS COMMITTEE  

 

Mr. Mace had no report this evening. 
 

SERVICES, UTILITIES & EQUIPMENT COMMITTEE 

Motion by Tadych authorizing the Director of Finance to request proposals for a new City 

Telephone System. 



Minutes of Regular Meeting 
Bay Village City Council 
April 18, 2016 
 

5 
 

Motion carried 7-0. 

Mrs. Mahoney stated that the consultant would like to have the requests for proposals within a 

month. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

In compliance with Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code, Mr. Clark moved to convene to 

Executive Session regarding Contracts: SAFEbuilt, Inc., and Personnel, Firefighters Local 1144 

Labor Agreement, Codified Ordinance Chapter 151, Employment Provisions, and Administrative 

Compensation. 

Roll Call Vote:  Yeas – Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent, Clark. 

                            Nays - None 

 
Also present in Executive Session were Mayor Sutherland, Law Director Ebert and Finance 
Director Renee Mahoney. 
 
Council reconvened in an open meeting following the Executive Session at 10:17 p.m.  Present 
were: Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Mace, Lieske, Tadych, Vincent.   
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________               __________________________ 

Paul A. Koomar, President of Council   Joan Kemper, Clerk of Council 



RESOLUTION NO. 
INTRODUCED BY: 

 

 

A RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL 

 JUSTICE GRANT APPLICATION, 

 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
  WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, Office of Criminal Justice Services is offering an 
Edward Memorial Justice Assistance Grant up to $50,000 to supplement the investigative efforts 
of the Bay Village Police Department; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Police Department has prepared the application for submission 
with the State of Ohio; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Bay 
Village, Ohio; 
 
  SECTION 1.     That this Council hereby authorizes the application and 
acceptance of an Edward Memorial Justice Assistance Grant to assist in the investigative efforts 
of the Bay Village Police Department. 
 
  SECTION 2.     That this Council finds and determines that all formal actions  
of this Council concerning and relating to the passage of this resolution were taken in an open 
meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of this Council and of any committee that 
resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public in compliance with law. 
 
  SECTION 3.  That this resolution is hereby declared to be an emergency measure 
immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare, and 
for the further reason that it is necessary to authorize the filing of said application in a timely 
manner, wherefore this resolution shall be in full force and take effect immediately upon its 
passage and approval by the Mayor. 
 
PASSED: 
 
       ___________________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
___________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
___________________________ 
MAYOR 
 
 
4/21/16 LL 



To amend appropriations for the current and other expenditures of the City of Bay Village for the fiscal year 2016,

as previously appropriated in annual appropriation 16-09.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the City of  Bay Village, State of Ohio:

Section1:
December 31, 2016, the following sums be and they are herby set aside and appropriated from the funds herein specified
as follows, to wit:

Section 2:
hereto as Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein:

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

100 Total General Fund 6,813,167$      3,541,762$      40,700$                 1,024,006$      11,419,635$      

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

210 Emergency Paramedic 1,143,720$      88,975$           12,000$                 -$                     1,244,695$        

230 Parks and Recreation 663,770           292,700           15,500                   -                       971,970             

231 Community Gym Capital Improvement -                       -                       5,000                     -                       5,000                 

235 Bay Family Services -                       43,700             -                             -                       43,700               

236 Community Diversion -                       9,000               -                             -                       9,000                 

238 Tennis Court Maintenance -                       -                       10,000                   -                       10,000               

240 Equipment Replacement -                       5,000               800,320                 -                       805,320             

245 Private Property Maintenance 13,555             32,500             -                             -                       46,055               

250 State Highway -                       51,000             -                             -                       51,000               

270 Street Construction 637,250           287,600           750,000                 175,000           1,849,850          

280 Police Pension 348,500           -                       -                             -                       348,500             

281 Fire Pension 471,100           -                       -                             -                       471,100             

282 Accrued Benefits 140,000           -                       -                             -                       140,000             

284 Endowment Trust -                       23,707             -                             -                       23,707               

290 Senior Programs -                       49,500             -                             -                       49,500               

292 Law Enforcement -                       28,000             -                             -                       28,000               

293 Drug Fine/Bail Forfeiture -                       500                  -                             -                       500                    

294 Alcohol Intervention -                       6,500               -                             -                       6,500                 

297 Federal Equitable Sharing -                       50,000             -                             -                       50,000               

200 Total Special Revenue Funds 3,417,895$      968,682$         1,592,820$            175,000$         6,154,397$        

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

300 General Bond Retirement -$                     4,591,935$      -$                           -$                     4,591,935$        

CITY OF BAY VILLAGE, OHIO
ORDINANCE NO.  

By:  Clark

That to provide for the current expenses and other expenditures of the City of Bay Village during the fiscal year ending

That there be appropriated transferred and advanced from the following funds and as further detailed in the Schedules attached

General Fund - 100

Special Revenue Fund Group - 200

Debt Service Fund Group - 300



Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

480 Walker Road Park -                       220                  -                             -                       220                    
490 Public Improvement -                       -                       120,700                 -                       120,700             
494 Infrastructure Improvements -                       -                       130,000                 -                       130,000             
495 Municipal Building Improvements -                       -                       46,000                   -                       46,000               
400 Total Capital Project Fund Group -$                     220$                296,700$               -$                     296,920$           

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

520 Pool 222,000$         111,500$         10,000$                 -$                     343,500$           
580 Sewer 815,475           1,481,612        94,000                   -                       2,391,087          
500 Total Enterprise Fund Group 1,037,475$      1,593,112$      104,000$               -$                     2,734,587$        

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

600 Health Insurance -$                     1,297,250$      -$                           -$                     1,297,250$        
601 General Insurance -                       163,390           -                             -                       163,390             
602 Workers Compensation 140,000           -                       -                             -                       140,000             
600 Total Internal Service Fund Group 140,000$         1,460,640$      -$                           -$                     1,600,640$        

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

810 Cahoon Park -$                     66,900$           -$                           -$                     66,900$             
820 Cahoon Memorial -                       3,300               -                             -                       3,300                 
830 Cahoon Library -                       8,000               -                             -                       8,000                 
840 Waldeck -                       6,200               -                             -                       6,200                 
860 Dwyer -                       5,000               -                             -                       5,000                 
800 Total Trust Fund Group -$                     89,400$           -$                           -$                     89,400$             

Personal Capital Transfers/

Fund # Fund Activity Service Other Improvement Advances Total

930 Building Deposits -$                     30,000$           -$                           -$                     30,000$             
931 Security Deposits -                       22,000             -                             -                       22,000               
900 Total Deposit Fund Group -$                     52,000$           -$                           -$                     52,000$             

Grand Total All Funds 11,408,537$    12,297,751$    2,034,220$            1,199,006$      26,939,514$      

Description Amount

General Fund to Parks and Recreation 430,000$               

General Fund to Community Gym 8,306                     

General Fund to Street Construction 425,000                 

General Fund to Cahoon Income 25,000                   

General Fund to Cahoon Trust 2,000                     

General Fund to Cahoon Library 10,000                   

General Fund to Bay Family Services 43,700                   

General Fund to Accrued Benefits 30,000                   

General Fund to Fire Pension 50,000                   

      Total Transfers 1,024,006$            

Street Construction to Infrastructure Improvements 175,000                 

      Total Advances and Advance Repayments 175,000$               

Total Transfers and Advances 1,199,006$            

Capital Project Fund Group - 400

Enterprise Fund Group- 500

Internal Service Fund Group - 600

Trust Fund Group - 800

Deposit Fund Group - 900

    Itemized list of Transfers and Advances by Fund



Section 3:
appropriations set forth upon presentation of proper vouchers.

Section 4:
the code accounts set forth above, and shall be made within the appropriations herein provided  
("Appropriations" as used means the total amount appropriated for an individual fund).

Section 5:

public in compliance with all legal requirements.

Section 6:

That the City Director of Finance be and is hereby authorized and directed to draw warrants against the 

That all expenditures within the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. shall be made in accordance with  

That it is found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the   
adoption of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations  
of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in such formal action were in meetings open to the  

This ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary for the immediate  
preservation of the public peace, health, safety and welfare for the reason that it is necessary in the     
current operation of the City, and therefore shall take effect immediately upon its enactment and 
approval by the Mayor.

PASSED:

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

CLERK OF COUNCIL

MAYOR



Personal Equipment

Department Service Other Replacement Transfers Total

Council 60,400.00$      9,150.00$        -$                       -$                 69,550.00$        

Clerk of Council 52,610.00        900.00             -                         -                   53,510.00          

Mayor 132,600.00      7,400.00          1,000.00                -                   141,000.00        

Law 111,340.00      112,000.00      -                         -                   223,340.00        

Finance 275,791.00      35,500.00        1,200.00                -                   312,491.00        

Taxation -                   194,300.00      -                   194,300.00        

General Administration 190,900.00      463,672.00      -                         1,024,006.00   1,678,578.00     

Civil Service -                   24,150.00        -                         -                   24,150.00          

Planning Commission -                   800.00             -                         -                   800.00               

Zoning Board of Appeals -                   700.00             -                         -                   700.00               

Service 1,812,620.00   1,880,600.00   10,500.00              -                   3,703,720.00     

Fire 1,274,600.00   96,650.00        14,000.00              -                   1,385,250.00     

Police 2,677,516.00   307,465.00      14,000.00              -                   2,998,981.00     

Central Dispatch -                   131,325.00      -                         -                   131,325.00        

Building -                   261,275.00      -                         -                   261,275.00        

Architecture Board of Review -                   25.00               -                         -                   25.00                 

Community Services 224,790.00      15,850.00        -                         -                   240,640.00        

GRAND TOTAL 6,813,167.00$ 3,541,762.00$ 40,700.00$            1,024,006.00$ 11,419,635.00$ 

EXHIBIT "A"

SCHEDULE OF BUDGETS BY DEPARTMENT FOR GENERAL FUND



Fund Description Amount

Equipment Replacement (240)

Computer Replacements 33,800.00          

Phone System (From 2012) 45,000.00          

Fire - Equipment 15,000.00          

Police - Cars 1125 and 1151 90,420.00          

Police - CAD/RMS System 14,575.00          

Police Equipment 24,200.00          

Service - Construction Trailer 4,000.00            

Service - Truck 19 - GMC 4wd 30,000.00          

Service - Truck 18 - Ford Explorer 30,000.00          

Service - Truck 71 - Pick up Truck 2wd 35,000.00          

Service - Truck 503 - Ford Tractor/Loader 35,000.00          

Service - Truck 66 F250 with Plow 35,000.00          

Service - Truck 21 Super Duty Dump 60,000.00          

Service - Truck 35 Five Ton Dump 170,000.00        

Service -Scareb - with Westlake 178,325.00        

Total Equipment Replacement (240) 800,320.00        

Street Construction (270)

Street Improvements 700,000.00        

Total Street Construction (270) 700,000.00        

Public Improvement (490) Play in Bay Improvement 10,000.00          

Service - School Flashers Normandy 6,000.00            

Dwyer Window Replacement 10,000.00          

Dwyer - Kitchen Engineering 20,500.00          

Kiddie Kollege Floor 13,000.00          

Bay Lodge Floor 13,000.00          

SWIF Parking Lot Grant Completion 25,000.00          

PD Garage Light Replacement 7,200.00            

Rose Hill/Osborn House 16,000.00          

Total Public Improvements (490) 120,700.00        

Infrastructure Improvement (494) Queenswood Bridge 130,000.00        

Municipal Building Improvements (495) Service Painting Projects 46,000.00          

Sewer (580)

Computer Model Lake/Bradley Sanitary 20,000.00          

Porter Creek Sewer 15,000.00          

Huntington Pump Station CPU Design 30,000.00          

Huntington Pump Station Radiator/Heat Exchanger 15,000.00          

Total Sewer (580) 80,000.00          

GRAND TOTAL 1,877,020.00$   

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL PROJECTS AND EQUIPMENT APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND

EXHIBIT "B"


